

INNER SOUTH COMMUNITY COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY, 15TH JUNE, 2016

PRESENT: Councillor A Gabriel in the Chair

Councillors J Blake, D Congreve, P Davey,
K Groves, M Iqbal, E Nash, A Ogilvie and
P Truswell

1 APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS

There were no appeals against the refusal of inspection of documents.

2 EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

There were no resolutions to exclude the public.

3 LATE ITEMS

There were no late items submitted for consideration.

However Agenda Item 15 "Inner South Community Committee delegated budget report" had been re-published and circulated to Members.

4 DECLARATION OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY AND OTHER INTERESTS'

No declarations were made.

5 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies for absence.

6 MINUTES - 9th March 2016

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 9th March 2016 were approved as a correct record.

7 OPEN FORUM

In accordance with the Community Committee Procedure Rules, the Chair allowed a period of up to 10 minutes for members of the public to make representations or ask questions on matters within the terms of reference of the Community Committee.

A member of the public asked about problems caused by hot food take away shops on Dewsbury Road. Members confirmed they would keep this issue under review.

8 Notification of Election of Community Committee Chair for 2016/2017

The City Solicitor submitted a report which formally notified members of the appointment of Councillor Gabriel to the position of Inner South Community Committee Chair for the duration of the 2016/17 municipal year, which was made.

RESOLVED – The Committee resolved to note the appointment of Councillor Gabriel as Chair for the 2016/17 municipal year at the Annual Council Meeting on 19th May 2016.

9 Community Committee Appointments 2016/2017

The City Solicitor submitted a report which outlined the Community Committee's role regarding appointments to: Outside Bodies; Community Lead Members; Children's Services Cluster Partnerships and the Corporate Parenting Board. In addition, the report invited the Committee to determine the appointments to these groups and organisations.

RESOLVED – That the following appointments be made:

Outside Bodies:

Belle Isle Elderly Winter Aid
Councillor Blake

Belle Isle Tenant Management Organisation (BITMO)
Councillors Truswell and Groves

Holbeck Elderly Aid
Councillor Ogilvie

Middleton Elderly Aid
Councillor Groves

Inner South Local Housing Advisory Panel
Councillors Ogilvie and Truswell

Community Lead members:

Environment & Community Safety – Councillor Ogilvie (Focusing on Environment) and Councillor Iqbal focusing on Community Safety)
Childrens Services – Councillor Gabriel
Employment, Skills and Welfare – Councillor Groves
Health, Wellbeing and Adult Social Care – Councillors Truswell (Focusing on Health and Wellbeing) and Davey (Focusing on Adult Social Care)

The Chair also asked for a representative from each ward to sit on each Sub group. the table below shows the agreed decision

Champion	Beeston and Holbeck	City and Hunslet	Middleton Park
Environment Cllr Ogilvie	Cllr Ogilvie	Cllr Iqbal	Cllr Groves
Community Safety Cllr Iqbal	Cllr Ogilvie	Cllr Iqbal	Cllr Truswell
Childrens Services - Cllr Gabriel	Cllr Gabriel	Cllr Davey	Cllr Blake
Employment Skills and Welfare – Cllr Groves	Cllr Ogilvie	Cllr Nash	Cllr Groves
Health and Well Being – Cllr Truswell			Cllr Truswell
Older Persons – Cllr Davey	Cllr Gabriel	Cllr Davey	Cllr Groves

Childrens’ Services Cluster Partnership Representatives:

Beeston and Cottingley and Middleton – Councillors Ogilvie and Blake
JESS (Joint extended schools and services: Beeston Hill, Holbeck, Belle Isle and Hunslet) – Councillors Gabriel, Iqbal and Groves.

Corporate Parenting Board

Councillor Gabriel.

10 Community Committee nominations to Housing Advisory Panels (HAP)

To receive a report of the Chief Officer Housing Management which seeks Ward Councillor nominations from the Inner South Community Committee to the Inner South Advisory Panel (HAP).

Members were requested to nominate one Member per ward.

RESOLVED – The Committee resolved to nominate the following Councillors to the Inner South Advisory Panel (HAP):

Councillor Ogilvie – Beeston & Holbeck;
Councillor Truswell – Middleton Park; and
Councillor Nash – City & Hunslet.

11 Inner South Community Committee Briefing Lettings Policy Review Consultation Update

The Area Leader, South Area Support Team submitted a report which updated the Committee on the latest information with regards to lettings policy review consultation. In February 2016, Executive Board agreed to commence consultation on these proposed changes to Housing Leeds' current lettings framework with a view to approving a revised policy in September/October 2016.

The consultation commenced with two Elected Member sessions in early March 2016. This has been followed by further consultation with local tenant and resident groups, statutory and voluntary sector partners and individual tenants and residents.

The paper provided an update on progress with the consultation to date, and some feedback on the key themes to emerge so far.

The report set out the proposals being consulted on to the council's lettings, including the development of a tenant transfer list, a review of the lettings policy and a new approach to community lettings policies.

The report set out the proposed consultation process and timescales for implementation of the new policies.

Members raised concern about people coming into the area and being placed higher on waiting lists than local people already looking for accommodation.

Members sought clarification on whether people already living in South Leeds would be prioritised and requested a separate meeting to identify and address concerns.

Members also discussed the statistical information available on people living in Inner South for example how many people live in Inner South and how many lived in flats.

RESOLVED The Committee resolved to:

- (a) Note the contents of the report; and
- (b) Request a meeting to take place with all members of the Inner South Committee to be invited, with the relevant council officers, to identify and address concerns.

12 Inner South Community Committee Briefing Neighbourhood Teams - June 2016

The Area Leader South Area Support Team submitted a report which highlighted steps taken to provide an integrated service for District Nursing,

Community Matrons, Intermediate Care Services and area-based Social Work which formerly operated to geographical populations with therapy services spread across intermediate care and domiciliary physiotherapy.

Caroline McNamara Clinical Lead for Adult Services Leeds Community Healthcare NHS Trust - Leeds Community Healthcare NHS Trust; Sam Walton – Adult Social Care were in attendance to answer Members' questions.

Members discussed the issue of mental health in the Inner South area. Members also discussed what more could be done to address mental health problems and considered that more collaborative working with the NHS was a good way forward.

The role of GPs surgeries in reducing health inequalities was discussed and it was highlighted that some small GP's surgeries lack the resources and services of the larger practices. Members felt that further work was needed to make small surgeries aware of increased collaborative working in areas like social prescribing. Rachel Brighton, Public Health advised that some work is taking place in this area and she would look to provide an update on social prescribing referrals.

RESOLVED – The Committee resolved to:

- (a) Note the contents of the report; and
- (b) Request an update report on social prescribing referrals made in the area, particularly through GP's.

13 Inner South Community Committee Update Report

The South East Area Leader submitted a report which brought to Members' attention, a summary of work which the Communities Team are engaged in based on priorities identified by the Community Committee, that were not covered elsewhere on this agenda. It provided opportunities for further questioning or the opportunity to request a more detailed report on a particular issue.

RESOLVED – The Committee resolved to:

- (a) Note the contents of the report; and
- (b) Note the design principles for the voice and influence of young people in the delivery of YAF.

14 Inner South Community Committee Forward Plan 2016/17

The South East Area Leader submitted a report which introduced the Inner South Community Committee Forward Plan for 2016/17. It detailed the Community Committee meeting dates and set out workshop themes. It also

highlighted the role of the Community Committee Champions and the work of the Community Committee in relation to the Council Constitution and associated delegations which are managed through its sub group structure, including Neighbourhood Improvement Boards (NIBs) on behalf of the Community Committee.

Members discussed the proposed community committee workshops for 2016/17.

Consideration was also give to the way the Council engages with the local Clinical Commissioning Group. Members requested a meeting with senior officers at the CCG so that the agenda for a Health workshop could be explored.

The Committee also discussed transport and highways. It was noted that an event for all Community Committees would be taking place this year following the NGT bid being rejected by Central Government.

The role of Champions was discussed and it was considered that more could be done to promote the work of Champions across the City. It was requested that at the next Area Chair's forum the Champion role be discussed.

RESOLVED – The Committee resolved to:

- (a) Note the contents of the report;
- (b) Request a meeting be arranged with senior officers at the CCG so that the agenda for a Health workshop could be explored; and
- (c) Request that at the next Area Chair's forum the Champion role be discussed.

15 Inner South Community Committee Delegated Budget Report

The South East Area Leader submitted a report which detailed the Wellbeing Budget position. It also provided:

- An update on both the revenue and youth activities fund elements of the Wellbeing budget;
- Details of revenue projects agreed to date;
- Details of Youth Activities Fund agreed to date;
- Details of Capital Budget agreed to date;
- Details of proposed ring fences for 2016/17;
- Details of project proposals for consideration and approval;
- Members are also asked to note the current position of the Small Grants Budget;
- Members were asked to review the minimum conditions as set out in paragraph 29 of the submitted report, consider whether any amendments are required and approve such conditions for operation in 2016/2017.

RESOLVED – The Committee resolved to:

Minutes approved at the meeting
held on Wednesday, 7th September, 2016

- (a) note the contents of the report;
- (b) note the revenue projects already agreed as listed in **Table 1** of the submitted report;
- (c) note the Activities fund projects already agreed as listed in **Table 2** of the submitted report;
- (d) Agree the proposed ringfences for 2016/17 as detailed **sections 13-21** of the submitted report with the following exceptions:
- That the budget for skips for City and Hunslet be increased from £1,000 to £2,000 and
 - That the Middleton Park Small Grant allocation be increased to from £2,000 to £5,000.
- (e) That the following wellbeing projects be approved:

Project	Name of Group/Organisation	Amount Proposed from Wellbeing Budget 2016/17	Wards Covered	Decision
Christmas Light provision 2016	Leeds Lights	£7,710	Beeston and Holbeck	APPROVED £7,710
Christmas Light provision 2016	Leeds Lights	£6210	Middleton Park	APPROVED £6210
Christmas Light provision 2016	Leeds Lights	£3,060	City and Hunslet	APPROVED £3,060
Irish Arts Foundation: community participation & learning programme 2016/17	Leeds Irish Arts Foundation	£2,250	Beeston & Holbeck (£1,125); City & Hunslet (£1,125)	APPROVED Beeston & Holbeck (£1,125); City & Hunslet (£1,125)
21 Hanging Baskets at various locations	LCC Parks and Countryside	£1,517.25	Middleton Park	APPROVED £1,517.25
Love Beeston Clean Beeston	Groundworks	£9,175	City and Hunslet	REFUSED
Boundary Security	LCC Housing Leeds	£1,813.54	Beeston and Holbeck	APPROVED

Fencing Provision Czar Street / Balm Place, Holbeck, Leeds, LS11				£1,813.54
---	--	--	--	-----------

- (f) note the Small Grants situation detailed at paragraph 28 of the submitted report; and
- (g) Approve the minimum conditions as set out in paragraph 29 of the submitted report and considered that no amendments were required and approve such conditions for operation in 2016/17. These conditions would need to be satisfied prior to an urgent delegated decision being taken in between formal Community Committee meetings in respect of the administration of Wellbeing and Youth Activity budgets and also the use of the CIL Neighbourhood Fund which has been allocated to Committee.

16 Chair's Remarks

The Chair notified the Committee that Hanif Malik, Chief Executive of the Hamara Healthy Living Centre in Beeston, had been awarded the OBE. The Chair and Committee wished to publicly congratulate Mr Malik on the award and for all his work in the Inner South Area.

The Chair also congratulated the clerk to the Committee, Phil Garnett, on his recent appointment to the position of Governance Manager at the CCG in Bradford and thanked him for his work in clerking the meeting over the last four years.

17 Date and Time of Next meeting

7pm Wednesday 7th September 2016.